

# Franklin County Levy Audit A Summary Report

11/07/2013 Department of Revenue, Property Tax Division

### **Table of Contents**

Overview	
Executive Summary	4
Audit Results	5
Tax Roll Certification	6
Fire Protection District No. 3 Levy Correction	7
Budget and Levy Certifications	9
Truncating Levy Rates for Regular Levies	
Regular Levy Limitations	
Refunds	15
Excess Levy	16
Timber Assessed Value (TAV)	17
Assessor Guidelines	
Appendix	

#### Overview

Purpose	The primary purpose of a levy audit by the Department of Revenue (Department) is to assist the county assessor in successfully performing the duties associated with levying taxes for the districts within the county. An effective audit of levy calculations consists of gathering information from the assessor's office to determine the level of compliance with laws and rules, the accuracy of levy calculations, and the effectiveness of record keeping.
Method of Calculation	The Department calculated the levy limits and levy rate for several of the taxing district for the 2013 tax year. To determine whether an error occurred, the Department compared the amount levied for the district with the levy limit, the statutory rate limit, the amount authorized by each district's resolution, and the levy amount certified by the district.
Information Reviewed	<ul> <li>Below is the information that the Department reviewed for the 2013 tax year.</li> <li>Resolutions adopted by the districts</li> <li>Levy certificates (budgets)</li> <li>Administrative and adjudicated refunds</li> <li>Ballot measures</li> <li>Levy limit worksheets</li> <li>The State levy letter</li> </ul> The scope of the audit did not include the review of earmarked funds.
Taxing Districts Selected	<ul> <li>Below are the taxing districts that the Department reviewed for the 2013 tax year:</li> <li>Franklin County General Fund and Road</li> <li>Cities: Pasco and Connell</li> <li>Fire Districts: 1, 3, and 5 (including excess levies)</li> <li>Port of Pasco</li> <li>Franklin County Public Hospital District No. 1</li> <li>Cemetery Districts: 1 and 2</li> <li>School Districts: Pasco, North Franklin, and Othello</li> </ul>

# **Executive Summary**

Introduction	This report contains the results of the Department's audit of Franklin County's Assessor (Assessor) levy calculations for the 2013 tax year.
Objectives	The objectives of the audit are to assist the Assessor in the levy process, to ensure that taxing districts levy the correct amount of property tax revenues, and to ensure that limits have not been exceeded.
Audit Results	The following items were discovered in the Department's audit:
	• The tax roll was not certified to the Franklin County Treasurer (Treasurer) on or before January 15, as required by RCW 84.52.080.
	• Fire Protection District No. 3, overlevied \$82,060. A levy correction is required in the subsequent tax year.
	• The county legislative authority did not certify the budget amounts of each taxing district within the county to the Assessor according to RCW 84.52.070.
	• The excess levies were within the limitations governing property taxes.
	• The Assessor uses the Department's levy computation form for calculating the levies. By using the Department's form, the Assessor is effectively calculating all the levy limitations.
	• The Assessor's levy paper work was both organized and detailed.
Categories of Results	The Department has completed its review and grouped the results into two categories:
	• The first category, <i>Requirements</i> , is of the greatest urgency for effective administration by the Assessor, taxing districts and or the county legislative authority. A change is required to adhere to the law.
	• For the items listed as <i>Recommendations</i> , the Department believes the Assessor could improve their current process by making voluntary changes in procedure.
	The Department based the requirements and recommendations contained in this report on our review of the administrative procedures employed, existing state statutes and regulations, and areas we saw opportunities to improve processes, procedures, and communication.

#### **Audit Results**

In this section	The Department identified three requirements and one recommendation directed towards improving the Assessor's methods.
	The items identified may be specific to the Assessor's duties, the taxing district duties, county legislative authority duties, or they may have shared components of responsibility. We have listed a summary of these items below.
Requirements	The Department identified three procedures that the Assessor, taxing district, or county legislative authority must change to comply with the law.
	• The Assessor is required to certify the completed tax roll to the Treasurer on or before January 15. (RCW 84.52.080 (4))
	• The Assessor is required to correct Fire Protection District No. 3's, levy error in the succeeding year by reducing the taxing district's 2013 levy for the 2014 tax year. (RCW 84.52.085)
	• The county legislative authority is required to certify to the Assessor the amount to be levied for each of the taxing districts. (RCW 84.52.070)
Recommend- ation	The Department identified one recommendation to improve the accuracy of the levy process.
	• The Department recommends that the Assessor truncate the levy rate for regular levies, rather than round levy rates.

### **Tax Roll Certification**

Requirement	The Assessor is required to certify the completed tax roll to the Treasurer on or before January 15. (RCW 84.52.080 (4))
What the law says	The county assessor must deliver the tax rolls to the county treasurer, on or before the fifteenth day of January, taking a receipt from the treasurer. At the same time, the county assessor must provide the county auditor with an abstract of the tax rolls showing the total amount of taxes collectible in each of the taxing districts.
	The tax roll prepared by the assessor's office contains both real and personal property values, the amount of taxes levied, and the levy rates.
What we found	The Assessor certified the tax roll to the Treasurer on January 28, 2013. The tax roll was certified to the Treasurer after the statutory due date.
	During the levy review, the Assessor explained that he could not certify the tax roll by the statutory deadline due to delays in receiving final levy rates from two joint taxing districts.
Action Needed	The Assessor must take the following actions:
to Meet the Requirement	• Certify the completed tax roll to the Treasurer on or before January 15.
Why it is important	State law gives dates by which the assessor's office is expected to complete different tasks. If they are missed by a substantial amount of time, it adversely affects the property tax process and the other departments and entities that rely on the Assessor's work.

### **Fire Protection District No. 3 Levy Correction**

Requirement	The Assessor is required to correct Fire Protection District No. 3's, levy error in the succeeding year by reducing the taxing district's 2013 levy for the 2014 tax year. (RCW 84.52.085)				
What the law says	district followitaxing	a levy error is discovered that affe , RCW 84.52.085 requires the ass ing year. If the amount of the adj district or taxpayers within the di ortional basis.	sessor to correct t ustment causes a	he error in th hardship for	e the
What we found	The Assessor levied more than was lawfully allowed for this district.				
	Prior to the levy audit, the Assessor discovered they had levied an additional \$82,000 for non-voted bond debt when the district had already included these funds in their levy request of \$1,100,000.				
	<b>Series of events:</b> On December 7, 2012, the Franklin County Fire Protection District No. 3 purchased Limited Tax General Obligation bonds. The note states that interest on the Bonds will be paid on June 1, 2013.				
	On December 26, 2012, the Board of Commissioners of Franklin County Fire Protection District No. 3 certified an amended budget certification for \$1,100,000.				
	On January 7, 2013, the Treasurer certified to the Franklin County Board of Commissioners a request for \$82,000, for the fire district's non-voter bond debt obligation. The Assessor was not aware at the time that the fire district had non-voted bond debt.				
	On January 28, 2013, the Assessor calculated and certified to the Treasurer two separate levies for Fire Protection District No. 3:				
		Fire Protection District No. 3			
		Assessed Value	Levy Amount	Levy Rate	
		\$1,017,079,659	\$1,047,405	\$1.029816	
		\$1,017,079,659	\$ 82,000	\$0.080623	
		Total	\$1,129,405	\$1.110439	

Continued on next page

#### What we found Listed below is the Department's levy limit calculations for Fire Protection (continued) District No. 3: • Levy Limit \$1,047,345 \$1,525,619 Statutory Maximum Rate • • Certified Budget \$1,100,000 Amount Authorized by Resolution \$1,047,345 • The fire district's levy should have been \$1,047,345, rather than \$1,129,405, a difference of \$82,060. In addition, during the levy process we discovered that the Assessor used an incorrect levy rate to increase the regular property tax levy limit. The Assessor's levy computation worksheet lists \$1.03809 as last year's levy, rather than 1.035809, resulting in an additional overlevy of \$60. Action Needed The Assessor must take the following actions: to Meet the • A levy correction is required in the succeeding year by reducing the taxing Requirement district's 2014 tax year levy. • Contact the fire district and inform them of the amount overlevied in the 2013 tax year. If the governing body determines the correction amount causes a hardship for the taxing district or taxpayers, the adjustment may be made on a proportional basis over a period of not more than three consecutive years. • Begin using \$1,047.345, as the highest lawful levy for the 2014 tax year. • The levy rate for the 2014 tax year to be applied to new construction, improvements to property, newly constructed wind turbines, and the increase in value of state assessed property is \$1.029757. • Encourage the fire district to use the Department's current version of the Resolution/Ordinance form REV 64 0101e. • Encourage the fire district to use the Department's current version of the Levy Certification form REV 64 0100. Why it is To ensure that the taxpayers pay the correct amount of property taxes thus the important taxpayers and taxing district are not harmed.

#### Fire Protection District No. 3 Levy Correction, Continued

# **Budget and Levy Certifications**

Requirement	The county legislative authority is required to certify to the Assessor the amount to be levied for each of the taxing districts. (RCW 84.52.070)
	Most taxing districts that intends to levy a property tax are required to certify an amount to levy to the county legislative authority. (RCW 84.52.020)
What the law says	RCW 84.52.020 requires most taxing districts to certify a budget or a budget estimate to the county legislative authority on or before November 30 for levying taxes.
	RCW 84.52.070 requires that the county legislative authority certify the amount to be levied for each of the taxing districts, including the county, to the county assessor on or before November 30 of each year. Unless the assessor failed to certify assessed values to taxing districts at least twelve working days prior to November 30.
	According to RCW 36.40.071, the county legislative authority may meet on the first Monday in December for a budget hearing.
What we found	The Assessor receives a copy of each district's budget from either the taxing district, Franklin County Auditor, or Treasurer. These budgets were made available to the Department for the audit.
	The county legislative authority did not certify the amounts levied by the board of each taxing district within Franklin County to the Assessor.
	In addition, on January 7, 2013, the Franklin County Treasurer certified the total obligation bond payment \$82,000, for the Franklin County Fire Protection District No. 3. This amount was already included in the fire district's levy certification, thus a levy error occurred which requires a correction.
Action Needed	The Assessor must take the following actions:
to Meet the Requirement	• Continue educating the taxing districts to certify their budget or budget estimate to the county legislative authority.
	• Continue educating the county legislative authority of their requirement to certify the levy requests submitted by each taxing district to the Assessor.
	Continued on next page

Continued on next page

# Budget and Levy Certifications, Continued

Action Needed to Meet the Requirement (continued)	If the taxing districts continue to provide the budget or budget estimate to an entity other than the county legislative authority, the Assessor could provide the county legislative authority with a copy of those documents. The county legislative authority would then have the documentation needed to certify the levy requests to the Assessor as required by statute.
	We discussed this requirement with the Assessor and he assured us that they would implement this requirement in the subsequent levy year.
Why it is important	To enhance the transparency in the governmental process of levying property tax.

# **Truncating Levy Rates for Regular Levies**

Recommend- ation	The Department recommends that the Assessor truncate the levy rate for regular levies, rather than round levy rates.
What we found	The Assessor's mainframe computer system only allows the levy rate to extend out six digits past the decimal. During the levy review we discovered that some of the taxing district's levy rates were rounded up at the sixth decimal, rather than truncating.
Recommend- ation to remedy	<ul><li>The Department recommends the Assessor take the following actions:</li><li>Truncate the levy rate (not round) to ensure the certified levy rate does not result in a levy amount that exceeds the levy limits.</li></ul>
Why is it important	To ensure that the levy rate results in the final levy amount at or below the statutory levy limit for each taxing district.

### **Regular Levy Limitations**

What are the statutory limitations	Regular property tax levies are generally considered those levies that are subject to several statutory limitations.		
	The Assessor must adhere to the follow	wing statutory limitations:	
	• Levy Limit (a.k.a., 101 percent)		
	• Statutory dollar rate limit		
	• Amount authorized by resolution/ord	linance	
	District budget		
	• \$5.90 aggregate limit		
	• 1-percent constitutional limit.		
Levy Limit	<ul> <li>factor; plus</li> <li>A dollar component calculated by m of the district from the previous year improvements to property, wind turb</li> </ul>	hount that will not exceed the amount on: been lawfully levied by the taxing 86 collection, multiplied by the limit ultiplying the increase in assessed value attributable to new construction, bines and any increase in the assessed he actual regular property tax levy rate	
	The limit factors used in calculating th 84.55.005 and WAC 458-19-005.	e levy limit are defined in RCW	
	07.35.005 and WAC 450-17-005.		
	If the district's population is	Then the limit factor is	
	less than 10,000	101%.	
	greater than 10,000- finding of	lesser of the substantial	

Defense	
<b>Reference:</b>	

• RCW 84.55.010

substantial need

for all other taxing districts

- RCW 84.55.0101
- WAC 458-19-020

Continued on next page

need factor or 101 %.

plus inflation.

lesser of 101% or 100%

# Regular Levy Limitations, Continued

Statutory Rate Limit	The statutory rate limit varies by district. These limits are found in the various statutes for each type of district. <i>The Property Tax Levies Operation Manual</i> also provides the statutory maximum rate for each type of district. The levy amount for each district cannot exceed the statutory maximum rate. The statutory dollar rate limits for senior taxing districts can be found in RCW 84.52.043 (1) and in the levy manual, chapter 3.
	Reference:
	• RCW 84.52.043
	<ul> <li>Property Tax Levy Operation Manual, <u>http://dor.wa.gov/Docs/Pubs/Prop_Tax/LevyManual.doc</u>, (chapter 3)</li> </ul>
Resolutions/ Ordinances	The amount authorized by a district in its resolution or ordinance is another limitation on taxation.
	• The resolution or ordinance must state the increase over the previous year's levy in terms of percentage and dollars.
	• The resolution is separate from the budget certification.
	• If a district does not adopt a resolution, the district cannot levy more than it received in the previous year, other than the amount resulting from new construction, improvements to property, newly constructed wind turbines, and increases in state-assessed property.
	Reference:
	• RCW 84.55.120
	<u>http://dor.wa.gov/docs/forms/PropTx/Forms/OrdinanceResolution</u>
Levy Certification (Budget)	Taxing districts that wish to levy must certify a budget or budget estimate to the county legislative authority by November 30 of the assessment year. ( <i>Note:</i> this does not apply if the assessor has not certified assessed values to the taxing district at least twelve working days prior to November 30).
	The county legislative authority must certify the amount to levy for each of the taxing districts, including the county, to the county assessor on or before November 30 of each year.
	However, the county legislative authority may elect to conduct its budget hearing on the first Monday in December, as permitted by RCW 36.40.071.

Continued on next page

# Regular Levy Limitations, Continued

(Budget)	Reference:
(continued)	• RCW 84.52.020
	• RCW 84.52.070
	http://dor.wa.gov/docs/forms/PropTx/Forms/LevyCertf.doc
\$5.90 Limit	The \$5.90 limit applies to the total of most regular levies in each tax code area. The aggregate of the junior and senior taxing districts (excluding the state levy and a few others) cannot exceed \$5.90 per \$1,000 of assessed value.
	RCW 84.52.010 provides the order in which taxing districts rates are to be prorated, in the order to bring the aggregate rate down to \$5.90. The \$5.90 limitation does not apply to levies made by or for:
	<ul><li>The support of common schools (state levy)</li><li>Port Districts</li></ul>
	Public Utility Districts
	Conservation Futures
	<ul><li>Criminal Justice</li><li>Emergency Medical Services</li></ul>
	<ul><li>Affordable Housing</li></ul>
	• Metropolitan Parks (if voters protect a portion of the levy from this limit)
	County Ferry Districts
	County Transit purposes
	Reference:
	• RCW 84.52.043
1 Percent Constitution Limit	The 1 percent Constitutional limit is based on true and fair value, unlike the \$5.90 limit, which is based on assessed value.
Limit	In 1972, a Constitutional limit of 1 percent was adopted by the voters. This limits the amount of property taxes that may be imposed on an individual parcel (real or personal) of property without voter approval of 1 percent of its true and fair value.
	The 1 percent limit applies to all regular levies (except port and PUD levies). It does not apply to excess levies approved by the voters.
	Reference:
	• RCW 84.52.050
	• RCW 84.52.010

#### Refunds

Types of<br/>RefundsThere are two types of refunds :• Adjudicated

Administrative

Use this table to decide how to levy for a refund.

If the refund is a	Then	And
adjudicated refund	the district is required	the refund is added to
(court ordered)	to levy the refund	the district's levy.
administrative refund	the refund levy is	the refund may be
	optional	added to the levy only
	_	if the district requests
		the refund in its levy
		certification or budget.

*Note:* When adding a refund to the levy, the statutory rate limit cannot be exceeded.

#### **Reference:**

- RCW 84.68.040 (Adjudicated refund)
- WAC 458-19-085 (Adjudicated and administrative)
- RCW 84.69.180 and RCW 84.69.020 (Administrative refund)

#### **Excess Levy**

**What is an** Excess levies are over and above the regular property tax levies.

- Excess Levy Excess levies require voter approval
  - Duration of excess levies are subject to limitations
  - Excess levies are not subject to the statutory limitations placed on regular levies

#### **Excess Levies** This table lists types of excess levies:

Type of Levy	Taxing District	Duration
Bond	Most districts	Long term debt usually
		15-20 years
Maintenance &	School and Fire	2-4 years
Operation (M&O)	Districts	
General	Most districts except	1 year
	school and fire districts	
Technology	School	2-6 years
Transportation Vehicle	School	2 years
Construction/Modern-	School and Fire	2-6 years
ization/Remodeling	Districts	

#### **Reference:**

- RCW 84.52.052
- RCW 84.52.053
- RCW 84.52.056
- RCW 84.52.130
- DOR Publication: Ballot Measure Requirements for Voted Levies

### **Timber Assessed Value (TAV)**

What is Timber Assessed Value	the timb as a sub	er excise tax revenue and in s stitute for the value that woul	b determine each taxing district's share of setting property tax levy rates. It serves d be carried on the assessment roll if or all bond and excess levy calculations.	
Components of TAV	Designa estimate	ted Forest Land Program (DI	Sessed value of property in the FL) from the prior tax year, and the r timber harvesting (RCW 84.33.089), values:	
	• Forest	osite tax rate land assessed value (FLAV) ge assessed value per acre on	privately owned DFL	
	necessar workshe	ry to complete the Timber Ta eets. The priority worksheets	ade, the Assessor has all the information x Distribution Priority 1, 2, and 3 list the individual taxing district's TAV able value for levy calculations.	
Tax base		essor should ensure that the a base for calculating excess lev	ppropriate amount of TAV is included in vies.	
			Then use this percentage of	
		If the levy type is	TAV in the tax base	
		Bond	100%	

If the it vy type is	
Bond	100%
Capital Project	100%
Transportation Vehicle	100%
School M&O	50% of TAV or 80% of the
	1983 timber roll, whichever
	is greater
All other excess levies	100%

#### **Reference:**

• RCW 84.52.080 (2)

#### **Assessor Guidelines**

**Introduction** According to WAC 458-19-010, the assessor generally calculates the property tax levy rate necessary to collect the amount of taxes levied for each district, within the limitations provided by law. Listed below are some of the guidelines for the Assessor based on the taxing district's adopted documentation.

Determine the authorized levy amount Use the table below to determine the authorized levy amount given certain situations.

When the taxing district	
submits	Then
a certified budget but no	the district's levy is the lesser of the
resolution	following:
	1. Previous year's levy <i>plus</i> any
	increase resulting from new
	construction, improvements to
	property, newly constructed wind
	turbines, and the value of state-
	assessed property,
	2. Current year's certified budget,
	3. Levy limit (zero percent increase),
	4. Statutory maximum amount.
a resolution, but no budget or levy	the assessor does not have the
certificate	statutory authority to levy on behalf of
	the taxing district.
a certified budget and resolution	the districts levy is the lesser of the
	following:
	1. Previous year's levy <i>plus</i> the
	percentage increase authorized by
	the resolution <i>plus</i> any increase
	resulting from new construction,
	improvements to property, newly
	constructed wind turbines, and the
	value of state-assessed property
	values,
	2. Current year's certified budget,
	3. Levy limit (up to 1 percent
	depending on the population of the
	district),
······································	4. Statutory maximum amount.
neither a certified budget nor a	the assessor does not have the
resolution	statutory authority to levy on behalf of
	a taxing district.

# Appendix

The following worksheets contain regular levy calculations for the districts in this audit.

							Highe	est Lawful Lev	vy Calculation: Fra	anklin County Ge	eneral						
Assmt Year	Taxes Due	Highest Lawful Levy Since 1985*		Highest Lawful plus Increase		Tax Added for State Assd New Const	Annexed Value	Tax Added for Annex.	Levy Limit	Assd Value	Stat. Rate Max.	Limit Per Stat. Rate Maximum	Highest Lawful Levy	Refund	Actual Amount Levied	Actual Levy Rate	Correct Levy Rate
	2012											-	-		7,496,389	1.439593	
2012	2013	7,299,056	1%	7,372,047	108,490,312	156,182	-	-	7,528,228	5,428,102,659	1.800000	9,770,585	7,528,228	-	8,185,884	1.508057	0.000000
									Actual Levy								
Assmt Year	Taxes Due	Previous Year's Levy Pre-Shift Per Resolutio	Authorized	Previous Yr's Levy plus Increase	Tax Added for State Assd New Const	Tax Added for Annex.	Refund Amount	Authorized Levy by Res, Plus Refund	Levy Limit Plus Refund	Certified Budget Includes Road Shift	Limit Per Stat. Rate Maximum	Current Year's Max Levy	Road Shift	Current Year's Levy	Actual Amount Levied	Under Levy	Levy Rate
2012		7,231,389	1%	7,303,703	156,182	-	0	7,459,884	7,528,228	8,185,885	9,770,585	7,459,884	726,000	8,185,884	8,185,884	0	1.508056
								Excess	Levy Calculation:								
	t Data & 1st Ye	e Budget	Refund	Total Levy	Real & Personal Taxable Value	TAV	Total Value	DOR Levy Rate	Total County AV x DOR Rate	County Levy Rate	County Levy	Over/Under Levy					
Bond		750,485	5 -	750,485	5,396,152,159	-	5,396,152,159	0.139078	750,485	0.139078	750,485	0					
Bond	2009	336,000	) -	336,000	5,396,152,159	-	5,396,152,159	0.062267	336,000	0.062267	336,002	2					

							Highest Law	ful Levy Calcula	tion: Franklin Co	unty Road						
	Highest Lawful Levy Since 1985*		Highest Lawful plus Increase	New Const	Tax Added A for State Assd New Const	Annexed Value	Tax Added for Annex.	Levy Limit	Assd Value	Stat. Rate Max.	Limit Per Stat. Rate Maximum	Highest Lawful Levy	Refund	Actual Amount Levied	Actual Levy Rate	Correct Levy Rate
2011 2012 2012 2013	2,949,954	1%	2,979,454	37,477,176	54,039	-	-	3,033,493	1,981,451,815	2.250000	- 4,458,267	- 3,033,493	-	2,656,935 2,279,194	1.441928 1.150265	0.000000 0.000000
								Actual	Levy							
AssmtTaxes Year Due	Previous Year's Levy Pre-Shift	% Increase Authorized	Previous Yr's Levy plus Increase	Tax Added for State Assd New Const		Refund Amount	Authorized Levy by Res, Plus Refund	Levy Limit Plus Refund	Certified Budget	Limit Per Stat. Rate Maximum	Current Year's Max Levy	Road Shift	Current Year's Levy	Actual Amount Levied	Under Levy	Levy Rate
F 2012 2013	Per Resolutio 2,921,935		2,951,154	54,039	-	0	3,005,194	3,033,493	3,005,194	4,458,267	3,005,194	726,000	2,279,194	2,279,194	0	1.150264

						н	lighest Lawful	Levy Calculation:	City of Connel	I						
AssmtTaxes Year Due	Highest Lawful Levy Since 1985*	% Increase Authorized	Highest Lawful plus Increase		Tax Added for State Assd New Const	Annexed Value	Tax Added for Annex.	Levy Limit	Assd Value	Stat. Rate Max.	Limit Per Stat. Rate Maximum	Highest Lawful Levy	Refund	Actual Amount Levied	Actual Levy Rate	Correct Levy Rate
2011 2012 2012 2013	401,872	1%	405,890	791,709	2,405	-	-	408,295	128,802,968	3.221364	- 414,921	- 408,295	-	401,872 408,295	3.037260 3.169922	
								Actual Levy			The City is annex Library at a rate of					
AssmtTaxes Year Due	Previous Year's Levy	% Increase Authorized	Previous Yr's Levy plus Increase	Tax Added for State Assd New Const	Tax Added for Annex.	Refund Amount	Authorized Levy by Res, Plus Refund	Levy Limit Plus Refund	Certified Budget	Limit Per Stat. Rate Maximum	Current Year's Max Levy	Actual Amount Levied	Actual Levy Rate	Correct Levy Rate	Under/Over Levy	
2012 2013	401,872	1%	405,891	2,405	-	0	408,295	408,295	408,296	414,921	408,295	408,295	3.169922	3.169918	0	

						High	est Lawful Lev	y Calculation: Cit	ty of Pasco							
AssmtTaxes Year Due	Highest Lawful Levy Since 1985*	% Increase Authorized	Highest Lawful plus Increase	State Assd New Const	Tax Added for State Assd New Const	Annexed Value	Tax Added for Annex.	Levy Limit	Assd Value	Stat. Rate Max.	Limit Per Stat. Rate Maximum	Highest Lawful Levy	Refund	Actual Amount Levied	Actual Levy Rate	Correct Levy Rate
2011 2012 2012 2013	6.564.819	1%	6,630,467	83,654,800	164 662			6,795,130	3,300,169,365	3.600000	- 11,880,610	- 6,795,130		6,327,852 6,492,514		
2012 2013	0,004,819	1%	0,030,407	83,654,800	164,663		-		3,300,169,365	$\sim$				0,492,514	1.90/32/	0.00000
							A	ctual Levy		(	ity of Pasco has a F	ireman's Pension	Fund			
AssmtTaxes Year Due	Previous Year's Levy	% Increase Authorized	Previous Yr's Levy plus Increase	Tax Added for State Assd New Const	Tax Added for Annex.	Refund Amount	Authorized Levy by Res, Plus Refund	Levy Limit Plus Refund	Certified Budget	Limit Per Stat. Rate Maximum	Current Year's Max Levy	Actual Amount Levied	Actual Levy Rate	Correct Levy Rate	Under/Over Levy	
2012 2013	6,327,852	0%	6,327,852	164,663			6,492,515	6,795,130	6,492,514	11,880,610	6,492,514	6,492,514	1.967327	1.967327	, 0	
							Excess Levy C	alculation:								
Ballot Data																
-		<b>D</b> ( )	<b>T</b> ( ) (	Real & Personal		<b>T</b> ( 1)(1)	DOR	Total County AV	County	County	Over/Under	-				
Type & 1st Y	Budget	Refund	Total Levy	Taxable Value	TAV	Total Value	Levy Rate	x DOR Rate	Levy Rate	Levy	Levy	Туре				
Bond 1999	61,106		61,106	2,847,741,025		2,847,741,025		61,106	0.021458	61,106	0	Library				
Bond 1999	77,394	-	77,394	2,847,741,025		2,847,741,025		77,394	0.027177	77,394	0	Fire				
Bond 2002	379,600	-	379,600	2,551,722,674	-	2,551,722,674	0.148762	379,600	0.148762	379,600	0	Refunding				

						I	Highest Lawful	Levy Calculation	n: Port of Pasco							
AssmtTaxes Year Due	Highest Lawful Levy Since 1985*	% Increase Authorized	Highest Lawful plus Increase	State Assd New Const	Tax Added for State Assd New Const	Annexed Value	Tax Added for Annex.	Levy Limit	Assd Value	Stat. Rate Max.	Limit Per Stat. Rate Maximum	Highest Lawful Levy	Refund	Actual Amount Levied	Actual Levy Rate	Correct Levy Rate
2011 2012 2012 2013	1,715,520	1%	1,732,675	107,997,334	35,929	-	-	1,768,604	5,369,253,189	0.450000	- 2,416,164	- 1,768,604	-	1,715,520 1,768,604	0.332681 0.329395	0.000000
								Actual Levy								
AssmtTaxes Year Due	Previous Year's Levy	% Increase Authorized	Previous Yr's Levy plus Increase	Tax Added for State Assd New Const	Tax Added for Annex.	Refund Amount	Authorized Levy by Res, Plus Refund	Levy Limit Plus Refund	Certified Budget	Limit Per Stat. Rate Maximum	Current Year's Max Levy	Actual Amount Levied	Actual Levy Rate	Correct Levy Rate	Under/Over Levy	
2012 2013	1,715,520	1%	1,732,675	35,929	-	0	1,768,604	1,768,604	1,768,604	2,416,164	1,768,604	1,768,604	0.329395	0.329394	0	

						Hig	hest Lawful Le	vy Calculation: H	lospital District	1						
AssmtTaxes Year Due	Highest Lawful Levy Since 1985*	% Increase Authorized	Highest Lawful plus Increase	State Assd New Const	Tax Added for State Assd New Const	Annexed Value	Tax Added for Annex.	Levy Limit	Assd Value	Stat. Rate Max.	Limit Per Stat. Rate Maximum	Highest Lawful Levy	Refund	Actual Amount Levied	Actual Levy Rate	Correct Levy Rate
2011 2012											-	-		275,939	0.297658	0.000000
2012 2013	275,939	1%	278,698	10,492,229	3,123	-	-	281,821	1,008,864,981	0.500000	504,432	281,821	-	281,821	0.279345	0.000000
								Actual Levy								
AssmtTaxes Year Due	Previous Year's Levy	% Increase Authorized	Previous Yr's Levy plus Increase	Tax Added for State Assd New Const	Tax Added for Annex.	Refund Amount	Authorized Levy by Res, Plus Refund	Levy Limit Plus Refund	Certified Budget	Limit Per Stat. Rate Maximum	Current Year's Max Levy	Actual Amount Levied	Actual Levy Rate	Correct Levy Rate	Under/Over Levy	
2012 2013	275,939	1%	278,698	3,123		0	281,821	281,821	281,822	504,432	281,821	281,821	0.279345	0.279345	0	

						I	Highest Lawful	Levy Calculation:	Fire District 1							
AssmtTaxes Year Due	Highest Lawful Levy Since 1985*	% Increase Authorized	Highest Lawful plus Increase		Tax Added for State Assd New Const	Annexed Value	Tax Added for Annex.	Levy Limit	Assd Value	Stat. Rate Max.	Limit Per Stat. Rate Maximum	Highest Lawful Levy	Refund	Actual Amount Levied	Actual Levy Rate	Correct Levy Rate
2011 2012											-	-		174,323	0.662850	0.00000
2012 2013	176,893	1%	178,662	3,703,287	2,455	-	-	181,117	291,426,463	1.000000	291,426	181,117	-	178,520	0.612573	0.00000
								Actual Levy								
AssmtTaxes Year Due	Previous Year's Levy	% Increase Authorized	Previous Yr's Levy plus Increase	Tax Added for State Assd New Const	Tax Added for Annex.	Refund Amount	Authorized Levy by Res, Plus Refund	Levy Limit Plus Refund	Certified Budget	Limit Per Stat. Rate Maximum	Current Year's Max Levy	Actual Amount Levied	Actual Levy Rate	Correct Levy Rate	Under/Over Levy	
2012 2013	174,323	1%	176,066	2,455	-	0	178,521	181,117	178,520	291,426	178,520	178,520	0.612573	0.612573	0	

							Highest Lawful L	evy Calculation:	Fire District 3							
AssmtTaxe Year Due		% Increase y Authorized 5*		State Assd New Const	Tax Added for State Assd New Const	Annexed Value	Tax Added for Annex.	Levy Limit	Assd Value	Stat. Rate Max.	Limit Per Stat. Rate Maximum	Highest Lawful Levy	Refund	Actual Amount Levied	Actual Levy Rate	Correct Levy Rate
2011 2012	2										-	-		1,010,292	1.035809	0.00000
2012 2013	3 1,010,292	2 1%	1,020,395	26,018,996	26,951	-	. <u>-</u>	1,047,345	1,017,079,659	1.500000	1,525,619	1,047,345	-	1,129,405	1.110439	0.000000
								Actual Levy								
AssmtTaxe Year Due		% Increase Authorized	Previous Yr's Levy plus Increase	Tax Added for State Assd New Const	Tax Added for Annex.	Refund Amount	Authorized Levy by Res, Plus Refund	Levy Limit Plus Refund	Certified Budget	Limit Per Stat. Rate Maximum	Current Year's Max Levy	Actual Amount Levied	Actual Levy Rate	Correct Levy Rate	Over Levy	
2012 2013	3 1,010,292	2 1%	1,020,395	26,951	-		0 1,047,345	1,047,345	1,100,000	1,525,619	1,047,345	1,129,405	1.110439	1.029757	82,060	I

						I	Highest Lawful	Levy Calculation:	Fire District 5							
AssmtTaxes Year Due	Highest Lawful Levy Since 1985*	% Increase Authorized	Highest Lawful plus Increase	State Assd New Const	Tax Added for State Assd New Const	Annexed Value	Tax Added for Annex.	Levy Limit	Assd Value	Stat. Rate Max.	Limit Per Stat. Rate Maximum	Highest Lawful Levy	Refund	Actual Amount Levied	Actual Levy Rate	Correct Levy Rate
2011 2012 2012 2013	204,308	1%	206,351	2,516,604	1,087	-	-	207,439	268,248,736	1.000000	- 268,249	- 207,439	-	105,313 107,454	0.432114 0.400574	
								Actual Levy								
AssmtTaxes Year Due	Previous Year's Levy	% Increase Authorized	Previous Yr's Levy plus Increase	Tax Added for State Assd New Const	Tax Added for Annex.	Refund Amount	Authorized Levy by Res, Plus Refund	Levy Limit Plus Refund	Certified Budget	Limit Per Stat. Rate Maximum	Current Year's Max Levy	Actual Amount Levied	Actual Levy Rate	Correct Levy Rate	Under/Over Levy	
2012 2013	105,313	1%	106,366	1,087	-	0	107,454	207,439	107,454	268,249	107,454	107,454	0.400574	0.400574	0	

						Highe	st Lawful Levy	Calculation:F	ranklin County Stat	te Levy						
Assmt Taxes Year Due	0	% Increase Authorized	Highest Lawful plus Increase	State Assd New Const	Tax Added for State Assd New Const	Annexed Value	Tax Added for Annex.	Levy Limit	Assd Value	Levy Rate	Limit Per State Letter Maximum	Highest Lawful Levy	Refund	Actual Amount Levied	Actual Levy Rate	Correct Levy Rate
2012 2013	-	-	-	-			-	- Actual Le	5,318,735,762		13,001,568	-	-	13,001,568	2.44448	5
								Actual Lo	, y							
Assmt Taxes Year Due		% Increase Authorized	Previous Yr's Levy plus Increase	Tax Added for State Assd New Const	Tax Added for Annex.	Refund Amount	Authorized Levy by Res, Plus Refund	Levy Limit Plus Refund	Certified Budget	Limit Per Stat. Rate Maximum	Current Year's Max Levy	Actual Amount Levied	Actual Levy Rate	Correct Levy Rate	Under/Over Levy	
2012 2013	-	-	-	-	-				13,001,568	13,001,568	13,001,568	13,001,568	2.444485	2.444485	(	)

							Highest Lawfu	I Levy Calculation	: Cemetery 1							
AssmtTaxes Year Due	Highest Lawful Levy Since 1985*	% Increase Authorized	Highest Lawful plus Increase	State Assd New Const	Tax Added for State Assd New Const	Annexed Value	Tax Added for Annex.	Levy Limit	Assd Value	Stat. Rate Max.	Limit Per Stat. Rate Maximum	Highest Lawful Levy	Refund	Actual Amount Levied	Actual Levy Rate	Correct Levy Rate
2011 2012											-	-		3,419	0.085777	0.00000
2012 2013	3,425	1%	3,459	425,829	37	-	-	3,496	46,370,106	0.112500	5,217	3,496	-	3,490	0.075258	0.00000
								Actual Levy								
AssmtTaxes Year Due	Previous Year's Levy	% Increase Authorized	Previous Yr's Levy plus Increase	Tax Added for State Assd New Const	Tax Added for Annex.		Authorized Levy by Res, Plus Refund	Levy Limit Plus Refund	Certified Budget	Limit Per Stat. Rate Maximum	Current Year's Max Levy	Actual Amount Levied	Actual Levy Rate	Correct Levy Rate	Under/Over Levy	
2012 2013	3,419	1%	3,453	37	-	0	3,490	3,496	3,490	5,217	3,490	3,490	0.075258	0.075258	0	

							Highest Lawfu	I Levy Calculation	: Cemetery 2							
AssmtTaxes Year Due	Highest Lawful Levy Since 1985*	% Increase Authorized	5	New Const	Tax Added for State Assd New Const	Annexed Value	Tax Added for Annex.	Levy Limit	Assd Value	Stat. Rate Max.	Limit Per Stat. Rate Maximum	Highest Lawful Levy	Refund	Actual Amount Levied	Actual Levy Rate	Correct Levy Rate
2011 2012											-	-		19,076	0.061320	0.000000
2012 2013	19,076	1%	19,267	4,234,192	260		-	19,526	328,795,313	0.112500	36,989	19,526	-	19,526	0.059388	0.000000
								Actual Levy								
AssmtTaxes Year Due	Previous Year's Levy	% Increase Authorized	Levy plus Increase	for State Assd	Tax Added for Annex.	Refund Amount	Authorized Levy by Res, Plus Refund	Levy Limit Plus Refund	Certified Budget	Limit Per Stat. Rate Maximum	Current Year's Max	Actual Amount Levied	Actual Levy Rate	Correct Levy Rate	Under/Over Levy	
2012 2013	19,076	1%	19,267	New Const 260		0	19,526	19,526	19,527	36,989	Levy 19,526	19,526	0.059388	0.059387	0	

The following worksheet contains excess levy calculations for the districts in this audit.

					Excess Levy C	alculation: P	asco School Distr	ict No.1				
Ballot D	ata											
Type & 1st Ye	ear	Budget	Refund	Total Levy	Real & Personal Taxable Value	TAV	Total Value	Levy Rate	Total County AV x Rate	County Levy Rate	County Levy	Under Levy
M & O	2013	20,100,000	-	20,100,000	4,511,354,736	-	4,511,354,736	4.455424	20,099,998	4.455424	20,099,998	0
Bond		9,955,000	-	9,955,000	4,511,354,736	-	4,511,354,736	2.206654	9,954,999	2.206654	9,954,999	0
				Excess Levy Ca	Iculation: North Fi	ranklin Schoo	ol District No. 51 (	Senior distric	t with Adams)			
Ballot D	ata				Department	Calculations						
					·							
Type & 1st Ye	ear	Budget	Refund	Total Levy	Real & Personal Taxable Value	TAV	Total Value	Levy Rate	Total County AV x Rate	County Levy Rate	County Levy	Over/Under
M & O	2013	1,782,279	-	1,782,279	735,904,634	-	735,904,634	2.421889	1,782,279	2.421889	1,782,279	0
Bond		1,228,328	-	1,228,328	735,904,634	-	735,904,634	1.669140	1,228,328	1.669140	1,228,328	0
				Excess Levy	Calculation: Othe	ello School D	istrict No. 55 (Jun	ior district wi	th Adams)			
					Department	Calculations						
Type & 1st Ye	ear	Budget	Refund	Total Levy	Real & Personal Taxable Value	TAV	Total Value	Levy Rate	Total County AV x Rate	County Levy Rate	County Levy	Over/Under
M & O	2013	173,857	-	173,857	73,661,204		73,661,204	2.360224	173,857	2.360224	173,857	0
Bond		155,776	-	155,776	73,661,204	-	73,661,204	2.114763	155,776	2.114761	155,776	0